RL-TR-91-199 Final Technical Report September 1991





PARAMETERS AND ADDRESS

IMPROVED 320x244 - ELEMENT PtSi SCHOTTKY - BARRIER IR-CCD IMAGE SENSOR

David Sarnoff Research Center

)

ŝ

F.V. Shallcross, W.F. Kosonocky, T.S. Villani, G.M. Meray, J.M. O'Neill III

APPROVED FOR PUBLIC RELEASE; DISTRIBUTION UNLIMITED.



Rome Laboratory Air Force Systems Command Griffiss Air Force Base, NY 13441-5700

91 10 15 057

This report has been reviewed by the Rome Laboratory Public Affairs Office (PA) and is releasable to the National Technical Information Service (NTIS). At NTIS it will be releasable to the general public, including foreign nations.

RL-TR-91-199 has been reviewed and is approved for publication.

APPROVED:

Melanie M. Weeka

MELANIE M. WEEKS Project Engineer

FOR THE COMMANDER:

wold Koti

HAROLD ROTH, Director Directorate of Solid State Sciences

If your address has changed or if you wish to be removed from the Rome Laboratory mailing list, or if the addressee is no longer employed by your organization, please notify RL(ERED) Hanscom AFB MA 01731-5000. This will assist us in maintaining a current mailing list.

Do not return copies of this report unless contractual obligations or notices on a specific document require that it be returned.

REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE	Form Approved OMB No. 0704-0188		
Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for revewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and mantaining the data needed, and completing and revewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to Washington Headquerters Services, Directorate for Information Operations and Reports, 1215 Jefferson Davis Highway, Suite 1204, Arlington, VA 22222-4302, and to the Office of Manegement and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0704-0186), Washington, DC 20503			
1. AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave Blank) 2. REPORT DATE 3. R	EPORT TYPE AND DATES COVERED		
September 1991 F	inal May 88 - Aug 89		
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE IMPROVED 320X244 - ELEMENT PtSi SCHOTTKY - BARRIER IR-CCD IMAGE SENSOR	5. FUNDING NUMBERS C - F19628-88-C-0088 PE - 62702F PR - 4600		
6.AUTHOR(S) F. V. Shallcross, W. F. Kosonocky, T. T. Villani, G. M. Meray, J. J. O'Neill, III	TA - 18 WU - 81		
7. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES) David Sarnoff Research Center CN 5300 Princeton NJ 08543-5300	8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBER		
9. SPONSORING/MONITORING AGENCY NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES)	10. SPONSORING/MONITORING		
Rome Laboratory (ERED)	AGENCY REPORT NUMBER		
Hanscom AFB MA 01/31-5000	RL-1R-91-199		
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	·		
Rome Laboratory Project Engineer: Melanie M. Weeks/ERED/(6	17) 478-5122		
Rome Laboratory (formerly Rome Air Development Center/RADC)			
12a DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY STATEMENT Approved for public release; distribution unlimited.	126. DISTRIBUTION CODE		
13. ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 words)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
This report describes the design, fabrication, and performance of an improved 320x 244-element IR-CCD imager with PtSi Schottky-barrier detectors. The imager has 40mm x 40 mm pixels, and a 44% fill factor.			
Design and process modifications used with this imager resulted in a significant improvement in dark-current uniformity and yield. A responsivity of greater than 1×10^4 electrons/pixel /°C for f/2.0 optics, a saturation signal of 1.4×10^6 electrons/pixel, and a charge-transfer inefficiency of 1×10^4 per transfer were measured for this imager.			
14. SUBJECT TERMS	IS NUMBER OF PACES		
ISCHOLLKY-BARTIER Detectors (SBD'S), Thermal Imaging, PUSI S IR Image Sensors, Charge-Coupled Devices (CCD's)	16 PRICE CODE		
17 SECURITY CLASSIFICATION 18. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION 19. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION 05 ABSTRACT	SSIFICATION 20. LIMITATION OF ABSTRACT		
UNCLASSIFIED UNCLASSIFIED UNCLASSIF	FIED U/L		
NSN 7540-01-280-5500	Standard Form 298 (Rev. 2-89)		

298-102

Table of Contents

. ,

Section			Page
	PRE	EFACE	vii
Ι.	INT	RODUCTION	1
II.	DES	SIGN OF THE 320 X 244 IR-CCD FPA	3
	Α.	FPA Architecture	3
	B.	Evaluation of Design and Process Alternatives	4
	C.	Chip Configuration	4
	D.	Pixel Design	5
	E.	Saturation Signal	9
	F.	Architecture of B and C Registers	9
	G.	Output Amplifier	14
	H.	Test Devices	14
	I.	Optional Threshold Adjustment	15
111.	FAI	BRICATION OF THE 320 X 244 IR-CCD FPA	17
	Α.	Photomasks	17
	B.	Device Wafers	18
	C.	Fabrication Process	- 19
	D.	Schottky-Barrier-Detector Formation	. 22
	E.	Wafer Lots	.'22
	F.	Chip Packaging	: 24
IV.	OP	ERATION AND PERFORMANCE	25
	Α.	Wafer Probe Testing	25
		1. Room-Temperature Probing	25
		2. Cryogenic-Temperature Probing	25
	B.	Packaged-Device Testing	26
	C.	Performance Characteristics of the FPA's	26
		1. FPA Responsivity and Dark Current	26

Table of Contents (Cont'd.)

Section		Page
	2. Saturation Signal	26
	3. Charge-Transfer Inefficiency of C Register	27
	4. Effect of Optional Threshold-Adjust Implant	27
v.	CONCLUSIONS	29
VI.	REFERENCES	31

Access	ion For	4
NTIS	GRA&I	U
DTIC T	АВ	
Unanno	unced	
Justif	ication	
By Distri	ibution/ Lability	Codes
5	Avail a	ad/or
Dist	Specie	al
Ar'		at approximation of the second



List of Illustrations

Figure		Page
1	Schematic Layout of the 320 x 244 IR-CCD FPA	3
2	Check plot of TA14804A FPA die	5
3	Pixel layout of TA14804A 320 x 244 FPA	6
4	Cross-sectional view of 320 x 244 pixel	7
5	Check plot of TA14804A pixel	7
6	Photomicrograph of TA14804A pixels	8
7	SEM micrograph of TA14804A pirel (at 30°)	8
8	Cross-section of the serial output register	10
9	Check plot of upper left corner of TA14804A FPA	11
10	Check plot of upper right corner of TA14804A FPA	12
11	Check plot of lower left corner of TA14804A FPA, showing input to C register	13
12	Check plot of lower right corner of TA14804A FPA, showing C-register output and output amplifier	13
13	SEM micrograph of TA14804A FPA output amplifier region	- 14
14	Calculated transfer function for transfer-gate region of TA14804A. Curve A: no V_T implant. Curve B: 2-µm implant length. Curve C: 3-µm implant length.	16
15	Wafer map for the TA14804A 320 x 244-element FPA's	19
16	Fabrication process for TA14804A FPA (through BCCD implantation)	20
17	Simulated boron profiles for channel stops	21
18	320 x 244 IR-CCD imager bonded in 32-pin package	24

List of Tables

Table		Page
1	Calculated Threshold Voltage for Poly-2 Transfer Gate	16
2	320 x 244 Photomasks by Process Sequence	17
3	TA14804A Implantation Variables	23
4	Measured Threshold Voltage for Transfer Region	27

PREFACE

This Final Report was prepared by the David Sarnoff Research Center (Sarnoff), Princeton, NJ, under Contract No. F19628-88-C-0088. It describes work performed from 25 May, 1988 to 5 August, 1989, in the Optoelectronics Research Laboratory, Dr. M. Ettenberg, Director. The Project Supervisor was Dr. G. W. Hughes, Head of Optoelectronic Systems, and the Project Scientist was Dr. F. V. Shallcross. The focal plane array was designed by Dr. W. F. Kosonocky; the chip encoding was done by G. M. Meray. The devices were processed by R. Miller, H. W. James, W. S. Romito and F. J. Tams, III. The array testing was performed by T. S. Villani and J. J. O'Neill, III. The Air Force Technical Monitor was M. Weeks.

The manuscript of this report was submitted to Rome Air Development Center, Hanscom AFB, MA in September 1989.

Publication does not constitute Air Force approval of the findings or conclusions of this report. It is intended only for the exchange and stimulation of ideas.

Section I

INTRODUCTION

Metal-silicide photodiode array technology was invented at Rome Air Development Center (RADC), Hanscom AFB, MA, and has been under development there since the early 1970's. In 1973, Shepherd and Yang proposed silicide Schottky-barrier detector (SBD) arrays for infrared thermal imaging [1]. Since then, considerable progress has been made at the David Sarnoff Research Center (Sarnoff), with the support of RADC, Hanscom AFB, on the development of PtSi SBD image-sensor arrays for thermal imaging applications in the MWIR (3 to 5 μ m) band and of Pd₂Si SBD image-sensor arrays for applications in the SWIR (1 to 3 μ m) band [2-10].

IR-CCD focal plane arrays (FPA's) with 64 x 128 and 160 x 244 elements were designed and fabricated at Sarnoff under contract with RADC, Hanscom AFB, from July 1981 to September 1984 [11-13]. Both of these IR-CCD FPA's had the same basic design in the form of an interline transfer IR-CCD imager with 2:1 vertical interlacing.

Under a contract with RADC, Hanscom AFB, from September 1985 to September 1987, Sarnoff developed a higher (60%) fill-factor version of the the 160 x 244-element IR-CCD FPA (TA13401A), together with a 43%-fill-factor 320 x 244 IR-CCD FPA (TA13401B) [14-16]. These PtSi FPA's were designed to have the same chip size and to be essentially pin-for-pin compatible with the previously developed 160 x 244-element IR-CCD FPA (TA11524) [12,13].

The objectives of the work described in the present report were to design and fabricate an improved version of the 320 x 244-element PtSi array using beneficial design and process changes inferred from test results on the TA13401B device. This report describes the design, fabrication, and performance of this array (TA14804A).

Section II

DESIGN OF THE 320 X 244 IR-CCD FPA

A. FPA ARCHITECTURE

The overall architecture of the present 320 x 244-element IR-CCD FPA is the same as that of the earlier 320 x 244-element imager (TA13401B) [14-16], and the arrays are designed to be pin-for-pin compatible. The size of the array chips for both FPA's are the same, 584 mil x 464 mil, and the photosensitive area of both imagers has a standard TV aspect ratio of 4(H):3(V), with 40- μ m x 40- μ m pixels. The 320 x 244 FPA is an interline-transfer IR-CCD imager designed for operation with a readout of two vertically interlaced fields per frame. This design allows an area-efficient pixel construction, with two-level polysilicon gates, by using four-phase (double-clocked) operation of the IR-CCD area sensor. Figure 1 shows a schematic layout of the 320 x 244 IR-CCD FPA.



Figure 1. Schematic layout of the 320 x 244 IR-CCD FPA.

B. EVALUATION OF DESIGN AND PROCESS ALTERNATIVES

The earlier 320 x 244-element IR-CCD imager (TA13401B) [14-16] was fabricated using a Perkin-Elmer Model 240 1:1 scanning projection aligner. In order to achieve 40- μ m x 40- μ m pixels with a fill factor of 43% and a chargehandling capacity of at least 10⁶ electrons/pixel using design rules of 2.5 μ m and alignment tolerances of ±1.0 μ m, the process for this earlier array incorporated several self-alignment features in definition of the buried-channel regions and the Schottky-barrier detector areas. The self-alignment technique required the use of a compensating p-type channel-stop implant at the edges of the buried-channel regions, as well as a heavily arsenic-doped guard ring around the detectors. These devices exhibited dark-current spots that increased with SBD operating voltage above 2 to 3 V. This break-down phenomenon appeared to be associated with the abrupt arsenic diffusion profiles and may also have involved the presence of the relatively heavily doped p-type channel-stop regions.

Subsequent to fabrication of the TA13401 \ddot{B} devices, we designed and fabricated the 256 x 256-element TA13866 FPA, partially funded under Air Force Contract No. F29601-86-0247. This device was fabricated using an Optimetrix Model 8605H 5:1 stepper, with alignment tolerances of ±0.5 µm or better, and a theoretical resolution of 1.1 µm. The process sequence generally resembled that for the TA13401B array, although the improved lithographic capabilities eliminated the need for self-alignment of the buried-channel and SBD regions. As a result, the devices were made with a lighter boron channel-stop implantation and a relatively low-concentration phosphorus guard-ring implantation. Test results on these 256 x 256-element devices confirmed that their design and process were satisfactory, and that the problem with dark-current spots occurring with the TA13401B devices had been eliminated.

As a result of tests on the TA13866 and TA13401B devices, it was determined that the fabrication sequence for the new 320×244 FPA would follow that used for the 256 x 256 FPA, with the photolithography to be done on the Optimetrix 5:1 stepper. The general chip design would follow that for the TA13401B array, with suitable correction for the use of the TA13866 process.

C. CHIP CONFIGURATION

Figure 2 shows a check plot of the entire FPA die. Note that details of the imaging area and C register are omitted for clarity. There are no test devices on

the actual FPA chip. Test devices required for process control and FPA performance evaluation are placed on a separate strip at the top of the FPA; this strip is sawn off from the array before packaging. The total die size, including the test area, is 584.0 mil by 503.9 mil.



Figure 2. Check plot of TA14804A FPA die.

D. PIXEL DESIGN

Figure 3 illustrates the pixel layout of the IRCCD FPA. The cross-sectional view of the pixel construction is illustrated in Fig. 4. In this construction, the SBD's are contained on all four sides by one or two levels of polysilicon gates. To minimize dark-current spikes, the PtSi SBD's are surrounded by n-type guard rings with a minimum width of 2.0 μ m, which are made with the same implantation as that used for the CCD buried channels. The channel stops, between two adjacent SBD's in the vertical direction and the SBD's and buried-channel CCD (BCCD) readout registers in the horizontal direction, are in the form of p-type implanted regions with a minimum width of 2.0 μ m and a 5- μ m-

long by 6- μ m-wide surface channel CCD transfer region between the SBD and the BCCD readout register.



Figure 3. Pixel layout of TA14804A 320 x 244 FPA.



Figure 4. Cross-sectional view of 320 x 244 pixel.

The operation of the SCCD channel-stop regions into accumulation ensures an operational blooming control mode of the SBD's, provided the BCCD readout register has a sufficient charge-handlin, capacity [13].

A check plot of the pixel is given in Fig. 5, showing additional details of the construction. This design gives a nominal fill factor of 44% based on the area enclosed by the guard ring. Figure 6 shows a photomicrograph of several pixels of the TA14804A FPA. Figure 7 is an SEM micrograph of one pixel.



Figure 5. Check plot of TA14804A pixel.



Figure 6. Photomicrograph of TA14804A pixels.



Figure 7. SEM micrograph of TA14804A pixel (at 30°).

E. SATURATION SIGNAL

In an attempt to increase the charge-handling capacity of the new 320 x 244 FPA, the nominal width of the BCCD channel of the B register was increased to 8 μ m from the nominal 7 μ m used with the earlier TA13401B 320 x 244 FPA, which had a B register saturation signal of 1.4 x 10⁶ electrons per pixel.

Previous measurements of the 160 x 244-element imager (TA13401A) with a 10- μ m-wide BCCD channel in the B register showed a saturation signal of 2.6 x 10⁶ electrons/pixel. Therefore, it was concluded that the saturation signal of these BCCD registers corresponded to about 11,000 electrons/ μ m², if the effective width of the BCCD channel of these B registers were reduced by about 1.7 μ m on each side. Thus, the effective width of the BCCD channel of the BCCD channel array was apparently only about 4 μ m. Increasing the nominal channel width from 7 μ m to 8 μ m was expected to result in increasing the saturation signal of the B register from 1.4 x 10⁶ electrons/pixel to about 1.8 x 10⁶ electrons/pixel.

F. ARCHITECTURE OF B AND C REGISTERS

The serial C register for this FPA was designed for four-phase operation with 10- μ m-long gates. This serial output register has a BCCD-1 channel with a width of 16 μ m, which also includes a deeper BCCD-2 channel (trench) of 4 μ m, as shown in Fig. 8. These channel widths were increased from 12 μ m and 3 μ m respectively used in the previous 320 x 244 device, with the intent of increasing the charge-handling capacity of the C register, in accordance with the B-register change described above.



Figure 8. Cross-section of the serial output register.

Figures 9 and 10 are check plots of the upper left and upper right corners of the FPA, showing the bus connections to the B register. This design is essentially the same as that for the earlier 320 x 244-element chip, with minor changes in bus widths. Figures 11 and 12 are check plots for the lower left and lower right corners of the FPA. These plots show details of the input and output sections of the C register, the bus connections for both B and C registers, and details of the output amplifier. The design closely resembles that for the earlier 320 x 244-element FPA, with the exception of the BCCD widths, as described above.



Figure 9. Check plot of upper left corner of TA14804A FPA.



Figure 10. Check plot of upper right corner of TA14804A FPA.



٢

Į.

Figure 11. Check plot of lower left corner of TA14804A FPA, showing input to C register.



Figure 12. Check plot of lower right corner of TA14804A FPA, showing C-register output and output amplifier.

G. OUTPUT AMPLIFIER

The floating-diffusion capacitance of the two-stage output amplifier of the TA13401B array was measured to be 0.045 pF as compared with the estimated value of 0.04 pF. The transconduction gain of this output stage was measured to be 350 electrors/mV, or 2.8 μ V/electron. With the available design rules it would have been possible to decrease the capacitance of the floating diffusion node to about 0.02 pF. However, as result of our experience with a limited linear operating range for the output amplifier of the 256 x 256 element device (TA13866) (with CFD = 0.02 pT), it was decided to keep the cutput amplifier of the 320 x 244-element device without change.

Figure 13 shows an SEM micrograph of the TA14804A FPA output amplifier region.



Figure 13. SEM micrograph of TA14804A FPA output amplifier region.

H. TEST DEVICES

Test devices for the TA14804A 320 x 244-element FPA are on a separate strip, which can be sawn off from the array. This test strip is shown at the top of

Fig. 2. These test devices consist of structures for use in photolithography, for standard silicon fabrication control, and for evaluation of FPA performance.

The photolithographic controls include die-by-die alignment keys for use with the 5:1 stepper, alignment verniers and critical dimension cells. Silicon process controls include test resistors for polysilicon and diffusions, and a structure to test for intra-level polysilicon shorts. There are test transistors with first- and second-level polysilicon gates with both buried and surface channels, in addition to a dual-gate buried-channel device. There are test capacitors using both levels of polysilicon.

For evaluating FPA performance, there are standard test Schottky diodes and silicide resistors. The test chip also contains a temperature sensing diode. In addition, there is a series of devices designed to evaluate the effect of variations in structure of the transfer region between the SBD's and the B register. These test structures all ow use of the added threshold-adjust implantations with various widths. A further set of structures is designed to test the effects of various widths of channel stop between the vertical channel and the SBD guard ring.

I. OPTIONAL THRESHOLD ADJUSTMENT

In the TA13401B devices, the charge is transferred from the SBD's to the vertical register through a surface-channel CCD transfer region. It was suggested that we increase the threshold (barrier height) of the surface-channel transfer region, to permit operation of the B-register at higher voltages. In response to this suggestion, two optional masks, V_{T-1} and V_{T-2} , were designed to permit tests of added implants in the transfer region on some wafers. The nominal channel length of the added barrier region was varied between the two masks; the length of the implanted region was designed to be 3.0 µm for mask V_{T-1} and 2.0 µm for mask V_{T-2} .

To estimate the required amount of threshold adjustment implantation, process and device simulations were run using SUPREM-3 [17] and MINIMOS [18] programs. Calculated threshold voltages for the poly-2 transfer gate region (from SUPREM-3 [17]) are shown in Table 1, as a function of implantation dosage, for a boron implantation energy of 40 keV. (Note that this calculation ignores ϵ_{max} short-channel effects).

Table 1

Calculated Threshold Voltage for Poly-2 Transfer Gate

Implant Dose	Threshold Voltage
0	0.065 V
$3 \ge 11 \text{ cm}^{-2}$	$0.789\mathrm{V}$
$6 \ge 11 \text{ cm}^{-2}$	1.316 V

To show the expected effect of a change in length of the implanted region, MINIMOS [18] was used to calculate the difference between a 3.0- μ m-long implanted strip (as in mask V_{T-1}) and a 2.0- μ m-long strip (as in mask V_{T-2}). Figure 14 shows the calculated drain-current vs gate-voltage function for no implant (curve A), and for a 3 E 11 cm⁻² boron implant with 2.0- μ m (curve B) and 3.0- μ m (curve C) implant lengths.



Ĵ

Figure 14. Calculated transfer function for transfer-gate region of TA14804A.
Curve A: 10 VT implant.
Curve B: 2-µm implant length.
Curve C: 3-µm implant length.

Section III

FABRICATION OF THE 320 X 244 IR-CCD FPA

A. PHOTOMASKS

To generate photomasks, the chip design was digitized using the ChipGraphTM program on the Mentor Graphics[®] system. Error checking was performed using the Cadence DRACULA IITM program on Mentor Graphics[®]. The fabrication process requires the use of 5X reticles as photomasks. Appropriate global and die-by-die alignment keys were added to the masks, which were generated by the mask vender in conformity with specifications.

Table 2 lists the photomasks according to the process sequence, together with the alignment reference for each level.

Table 2

Level Number	Level Name	<u>Reference Level</u>
02	Boron Implant	
18*	V_{T-1}	Boron Implant
19*	V_{T-2}	Boron Implant
03	P+ Diffusion	Boron Implant
04	Field Oxide	Boron Implant
05	Buried Channel-1	Boron Implant
06	Buried Channel-2	Boron Implant
07	Polysilicon-1	Boron Implant
08	Polysilicon-2	Polysilicon-1
09	N+ Diffusion	Polysilicon-1
10	Contacts	Polysilicon-1
11	Schottky Contact	Polysilicon-1
13*	Schottky Contact -2	Polysilicon-1
12	Dielectric	Polysilicon-1
17*	Dielectric-2	Polysilicon-1
14	Metal	Contacts

320 x 244 Photomasks by Process Sequence

* Optional levels

The mask levels 18 and 19 are used for the optional threshold adjustment implantation, as described above.

Based on microscope measurements of devices from Lot 1, it was determined that the original width of the Schottky contact opening on the Schottky contact photomask was larger than optimum, causing some risk that the detectors could contact the channel-stop regions around the detectors or one of the polysilicon busses. It was further determined that the cavity dielectric width was smaller than optimum, causing some risk of reflector shorts. As a result, two additional photomasks were generated (Level 13, Schottky Contact-2, and Level 17, Dielectric-2). The revised Schottky contact is 0.5 μ m undersize per side compared with the original mask, while the revised dielectric stripe is 1.0 μ m wider on each side.

B. DEVICE WAFERS

To minimize swirl-related nonuniformities in device dark current and responsivity, the devices were fabricated on magnetic Czochralski (MCZ) substrates. To eliminate back-surface optical scattering, the processing was done on wafers polished on both sides. In practice, it was found that the fabrication procedures caused some scratching of the wafer backs, and in many cases it was desirable to give a light polish to the back surface of the completed devices again, either in wafer or chip form, prior to the final anti-reflection-layer deposition.

1

Figure 15 is a wafer map for the TA14804A 320 x 244-element FPA's, showing the placement of die on a 100 mm wafer. Note that there are 26 chips per wafer with this layout.



Figure 15. Wafer map for the TA14804A 320 x 244-element FPA's.

C. FABRICATION PROCESS

The device fabrication uses a double-polysilicon NMOS CCD process, carried out in the sequence indicated by Table 2. As shown in Fig. 16a, there is an initial thick field oxide (7000 Å), which is first used in definition of the p-type channel-stop barriers around the detectors. Together with a photoresist mask, the field oxide also serves as a mask against the heavier p+ boron implantation (Fig. 16b). The field oxide is subsequently patterned to provide field oxide in the perimeter of the device, while removing thick oxide from the channel and detector regions (Fig. 16c). The buried channel (and guard ring) implantation is defined by a photoresist mask placed over a thin (250 Å) thermal oxide (Fig 16d). For all wafers in Lots 1 and 2, the BCCD-1 implant dose was 1.3×10^{12} cm⁻² phosphorus, and the BCCD-2 implant dose was 5×10^{11} cm⁻² arsenic.







Figure 16. Fabrication process for TA14804A FPA (through BCCD implantation).

The optional threshold adjustment implantation is defined by etching into the thick oxide after the first p-type channel-stop implantation (and removing the photoresist), so that the additional implant appears in both channel-stop and threshold-adjust regions.

Polysilicon patterning is followed by the usual n+ source-drain definition, contact and SBD etching, and cavity-dielectric and metal definition.

The selection of implantation conditions for the p-type boron-doped channel stops surrounding the SBD's was based on test results for the 256 x 256-element TA13866 device (partially fabricated under Air Force Contract No. F29601-86-0247). In order to ensure a sufficient barrier and to avoid sub-threshold leakage in the lightly doped substrate, a relatively deep implant was employed. (Previous simulations have shown the adequacy of this approach). Figure 17 shows the results from an earlier SUPREM-3 [17] simulation of the implant profiles for several possible channel-stop implants, after completion of the process. To ensure an adequate barrier and to minimize possible breakdown problems from overdoping, the implantation conditions were varied among the wafers for both wafer lots, as indicated below.



Figure 17. Simulated boron profiles for channel stops.

D. SCHOTTKY-BARRIER-DETECTOR FORMATION

The technique for formation of the SBD's has been described previously [13]. For the TA14804A 320 x 244-element FPA's, a thin (approximately 14-Å) layer of platinum was deposited on the wafers and annealed to form a layer of PtSi in the SBD regions. The unreacted platinum was removed by dip-etching in hot aqua regia. The structure was completed by depositing an approximately 7500-Å layer of SiO₂ and an aluminum reflector. The back of the devices were coated with an antireflection layer of approximately 5300 Å of SiO.

E. WAFER LOTS

Twenty wafers were completed from Lot 1, and 22 wafers were completed from Lot 2. As indicated above, the boron channel-stop implant was varied between the various wafers. Six wafers from Lot 2 were given the optional threshold-adjust implantation. Table 3 lists the channel-stop and thresholdadjust implantations used for each of the wafers. Note that M18 has a nominal barrier length of 3.0 μ m, and M19 has a nominal length of 2.0 μ m. (The measured length of these regions in the oxide implantation mask on the wafers was 3.6 μ m and 2.7 μ m respectively, reflecting a dimensional change on oxide etching).

Table 3

TA14804A Implantation Variables

.

.*

)

¢

<u>Wafer</u>	<u>Channel Stop Implant (B)</u>	<u>VT Implant (B)</u>
1A	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 2 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
1B	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 2 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1C	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 2 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1D	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 2 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1E	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 2 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
$1\mathrm{F}$	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 2 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
$1\mathrm{G}$	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 2 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
$1\mathrm{H}$	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 2 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
1I	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
1J	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 1 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1K	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
1L	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 1 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1M	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 1 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1N	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
10	$1 \ge 12 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 1 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1Q	$5 \pm 11 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 1 \pm 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
$1\mathrm{R}$	$5 \ge 11 @ 40 \text{ keV} + 1 \ge 12 @ 300 \text{ keV}$	None
1T	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
1W	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
1X	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2A	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	M18: 3 E 11 @ 40 keV
2B	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	M18: 5 E 11 @ 40 keV
$2\mathrm{C}$	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	M18: 8 E 11 @ 40 keV
2D	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	M19: 3 E 11 @ 40 keV
2E	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	M19: 5 E 11 @ 40 keV
$2\mathrm{F}$	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	M19: 8 E 11 @ 40 keV
2G	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2H	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2I	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2J	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2K	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2L	5 E 11 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
$2\mathrm{M}$	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2N	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
20	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2P	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2Q	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2R	1 E 12 @ 40 keV + 1 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2S	1 E 11 @ 40 keV + 2 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
$2\mathrm{T}$	1 E 11 @ 40 keV + 2 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2V	1 E 11 @ 40 keV + 2 E 12 @ 300 keV	None
2W	1 E 11 @ 40 keV + 2 E 12 @ 300 keV	None

F. CHIP PACKAGING

After the wafers were probe-tested, they were sawn into die. The $320 \ge 244$ element FPA's were bonded in specially designed 32-pin ceramic packages, which were designed for the introduction of the infrared signal through a 544-mil ≥ 424 mil window. (The same packages were used for the earlier TA13401B 320 ≥ 244 element arrays). Figure 18 illustrates the appearance of a 320 ≥ 244 -element imager bonded in a 32-pin ceramic package. (Note that the coarse grid pattern in the figure is an aliasing artifact in the photo-reproduction process, not a pattern on the chip itself).



Figure 18. 320 x 244 IR-CCD imager bonded in 32-pin package.

Section IV

OPERATION AND PERFORMANCE

A. WAFER PROBE TESTING

1. Room-Temperature Probing

After fabrication of the wafers was completed, they were initially tested for shorts at room temperature, using the automatic computer-based wafer prober. This probe system uses a Teledyne-TAC-PR-53 prober with a HP9836S computer. The system lists each short location and resistance and draws a wafer map identifying the location of potentially good devices.

The dc probe yield for the 1092 devices tested was 47%. Twenty-three of the 42 wafers tested had dc yields of 50% or higher.

2. Cryogenic-Temperature Probing

Following the initial room-temperature screening, the completed device wafers were probed using the automated cryogenic wafer prober. This unit consists of a Teledyne-TAC-PR-100 wafer prober, which has been modified for operation at cryogenic temperatures. Movement in the X-Y plane is accomplished by a stepping-motor drive table, on which is mounted a hollow copper vacuum chuck, cooled with liquid nitrogen delivered through a set of flexible nickel bellows. To avoid condensation, the cold chuck and prober are enclosed in a sealed box purged with nitrogen.

The cryogenic wafer prober allowed the devices to be characterized for functionality, array defects, and detector uniformity. When connected to appropriate drive electronics and a TV monitor, photos of defect patterns could be obtained of the imagers before dicing.

The first 34 wafers completed were tested on the cold prober. For these wafers, the yield of devices that could be operated was 54%. (Note that some shorts observed on dc probing did not prevent operation). Device wafers with potentially acceptable characteristics were then selected for packaging and further testing.

B. PACKAGED-DEVICE TESTING

The performance of the 320 x 244-element PtSi IR-CCD imagers was evaluated with an IR-TV camera tester, designed to produce an RS-170-equivalent video output. The imagers bonded in the 32-pin ceramic packages were cooled to about 77K by a liquid nitrogen Dewar.

The 320 x 244-element imagers were operated with a standard TV monitor without a frame converter, with the video output corresponding to every second line of standard TV output. To accomplish this, the IR-TV camera was operated with thirty 320 x 244-element frames/s, with two vertically interlaced 320 x 122element fields/frame and a horizontal clock frequency of 6.2 MHz. This operation produces a video output with a horizontal-line time of 63.5 μ s and an imager output signal at every second horizontal line. The RS170 video format can be displayed on a standard TV monitor with a pseudo-interlace producing pairing of two adjacent video lines and two adjacent blank lines.

C. PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS OF THE FPA'S

1. FPA Responsivity and Dark Current

Typically, responsivity was greater than $1 \ge 10^4$ electrons/pixel/°C for f/2.0 optics and a 3.4-µm long-pass filter. For the above operation, the 295K background corresponded to a signal charge of $2.5 \ge 10^5$ electrons/pixel.

Typical dark currents were less than 3×10^4 electrons/pixel. The problem of voltage-dependent dark-current spots observed in the previous TA13401B 320 x 244-element devices [14] was not seen for the present arrays, indicating that the fabrication changes incorporated in the new arrays were beneficial.

2. Saturation Signal

A typical saturation signal measured for the TA14804A 320 x 244-element FPA was $1.4 \ge 10^6$ electrons/pixel, determined by direct measurement of Cregister drain current. While this amount is comparable to or somewhat greater than that typically observed for the earlier TA13401B 320 x 244-element array, the difference is less than expected, based on the increase in nominal B-register BCCD channel width from 7 µm to 8 µm. Apparently, the effective BCCD channel dimensions were influenced by details of the channel-stop and BCCD implantation profiles, which differed between the two devices, due to the modified fabrication procedures. In future work, it is planned to evaluate the effect of modifications in the channel-stop and buried channel implantations on the saturation signal.

3. Charge-Transfer Inefficiency of C Register

Charge-transfer inefficiency (loss) measured for operation of the C register of the TA14804A 320 x 244-element FPA was similar to that measured for the earlier TA13401B array. Typically, a charge transfer inefficiency of 1.0 x 10^{-4} per transfer was measured at 77K, with a background charge of 2.0 x 10^5 electrons/pixel, a signal charge of 3.5 x 10^5 electrons/pixel, and a clock frequency of 6.2 MHz.

4. Effect of Optional Threshold-Adjust Implant

As indicated above (Table 3), six wafers from Lot 2 were given an additional boron threshold adjustment implantation in the transfer region between the SBD and B register. Measurements were made of the threshold voltages for transfer on two of these devices, and compared to wafers without additional implantation. Table 4 summarizes the results. As expected, the threshold voltage increased with increasing dosage, although the observed change is somewhat greater than predicted (see Table 1 and Fig. 14).

Table 4

Measured Threshold Voltage for Transfer Region

Wafer	<u>VT Implant Dose</u>	$\underline{\mathbf{V}}\mathbf{T}$
2V	None	1.5 V
2H	None	1.9 - 2.0 V
2D	$3 \ge 11 \text{ cm}^{-2}$	3.0 V
2F	$8 \mathrm{E} 11 \mathrm{cm}^{-2}$	4.0 - 4.5 V

Determination of detailed effects on device operation (including saturation signal) of the additional implantation in the transfer region will to be done in future work.

Section V CONCLUSIONS

An improved 320 x 244-element IR-CCD imager (TA14804A) was designed and fabricated, using minimum design rules of 2.0 μ m and alignment tolerances of ±0.5 μ m. The pixel size is 40 μ m x 40 μ m, and the nominal fill factor is 44%.

The dark-current spots observed with the earlier $320 \ge 244$ -element imager (TA13401B) were eliminated. This improvement is attributed to both design and process modifications incorporated in the new imager.

The change in the process also resulted in improved device yields. A coldprobe yield (identifying operable IR imagers) of 54% was obtained.

FPA responsivity of greater than $1 \ge 10^4$ electrons/pixel/°C for f/2.0 optics, and C-register transfer inefficiency (loss) of $1.0 \ge 10^{-4}$ per transfer were demonstrated, comparable to those obtained with the earlier TA13401 B 320 ≥ 244 element device.

A saturation signal of 1.4×10^6 electrons/pixel was obtained. The expected increase in charge-handling capacity by about 30% was not realized with the new design, in spite of an increase in B-register BCCD width from 7 µm to 8 µm. This effect on charge-handling capacity was apparently the result of differences in the doping profiles at the edges of the BCCD channel as compared to those for the TA13401B process. Future work will examine the effect of modified doping profiles on saturation signal.

An added threshold adjustment implantation in the transfer region between the SBD and the B register on several wafers caused an increase in threshold voltage as expected. Effects of the threshold-adjust implants on FPA operation have yet to be studied.

Section VI

REFERENCES

、「御川をかい

- F. D. Shepherd and A. C. Yang, "Silicon Schottky Retinas for Infrared Imaging," 1973 Int. Electron Devices Meeting, Tech. Dig., 310-313, Washington, DC, Dec. 1973.
- F. D. Shepherd, R. W. Taylor, L. H. Skolnik, B. R. Capone, S. A. Roosild, W. F. Kosonocky, and E. S. Kohn, "Schottky IRCCD Thermal Imaging," Adv. Electron. Electron Phys., Vol. 22, 7th Symp. Photo-Electronic Image Devices, Sept. 4-8, 1978, London, England, 495-512 (Academic Press, New York, 1979).
- 3. W. F. Kosonocky, E. S. Kohn, and F. V. Shallcross, "256-Element Schottky-Barrier IRCCD Line Sensor," RADC-TR-77-304, Sept. 1977.
- 4. E. S. Kohn, W. F. Kosonocky, and F. V. Shallcross, "Charge-Coupled Scanned IR Imaging Sensors," RADC-TR-77-308, Final Tech. Report, Sept. 1977.
- 5. W. F. Kosonocky, E. S. Kohn, and F. V. Shallcross, "Optimization Study of IR-CCD Array," RADC-TR-78-259, Final Tech. Report, Nov. 1978.
- W. F. Kosonecky, H. Elabd, H. G. Erhardt, P. A. Levine, F. V. Shallcross, and T. S. Villani, "Improved IR-CCD Area Sensor," RADC-TR-82-58, Final Tech. Report, Apr. 1982.
- W. F. Kosonocky, E. S. Kohn, F. V. Shallcross, D. J. Sauer, F. D. Shepherd, L. H. Skolnik, R. W. Taylor, B. R. Capone, and S. A. Roosild, "Platinum-Silicide Schottky-Barrier IR-CCD Image Sensor," Proc. 1978 Int. Conf. on the Applications of Charge-Coupled Devices, pp. 2-7 to 2-38, San Diego, CA, Oct. 25-27, 1978.
- W. F. Kosonocky, H. G. Erhardt, G. M. Meray, F. V. Shallcross, H. A. Elabd, M. J. Cantella, J. Klein, L. H. Skolnik, B. R. Capone, R. W. Taylor, W. Ewing, F. D. Shepherd, and S. Roosild, "Advances in Platinum-Silicide Schottky-Barrier IR-CCD Image Sensors," SPIE IR-Image Sensor Technol. 225, 69-71, 1980.

- W. F. Kosonocky and H. Elabd, "Schottky-Barrier Infrared Charge-Coupled Device Focal Plane Arrays," in Proc. 27th SPIE International Technical Symposium, San Diego, CA <u>443</u>, Aug. 23-26, 1983.
- H. Elabd and W. F. Kosonocky, "The Photoresponse of Thin-Film PtSi Schottky-Barrier Detector with Optical Cavity," RCA Review <u>43</u>, 542-547, Sept. 1982.
- W. F. Kosonocky, F. V. Shallcross, J. V. Groppe, G. M. Meray, R. Miller, and T. S. Villani, "High-Density 64 x 128-Element PtSi Schottky-Barrier IR-CCD Image Sensors," RADC-TR-85-34, Feb. 1985.
- W. F. Kosonocky, F. V. Shallcross, T. S. Villani, G. M. Meray, R. Miller, and J. V. Groppe, "160 x 244-Element PtSi Schottky-Barrier IR-CCD Image Sensors," Final Tech. Report, RADC-TR-85-176, Sept. 1985.
- W. F. Kosonocky, F. V. Shallcross, T. S. Villani, and J. V. Groppe, "160 x 244-Element PtSi Schottky-Barrier IR-CCD Image Sensor," IEEE Trans. on Electron Devices <u>ED-32</u>, 1564-1573, Aug., 1985.
- W. F. Kosonocky, F. V. Shallcross, T. S. Villani, G. M. Meray, R. Miller, J. V. Groppe, and J. J. O'Neill, III, "High-Fill-Factor 160 x 244-Element and 320 x 244-Element PtSi Schottky-Barrier IR-CCD Image Sensors," RADC-TR-88-130, Final Tech. Report, Oct. 1988.
- 15. W. F. Kosonocky, F. V. Shallcross, T. S. Villani, G. M. Meray and J. V. Groppe, "A 320 x 244-Element IR-CCD Imager with PtSi Schottky-Barrier Detectors," Proceedings of IRIS Specialty Group Meeting on Infrared Imaging, Applied Physics Laboratory, The Johns Hopkins University, Laurel, MD, Aug. 16 - 18, 1988.
- 16. T. S. Villani, W. F. Kosonocky, F. V. Shallcross, J. V. Groppe, G. M. Meray, J. J. O'Neill, III, and B. J. Esposito, "Construction and Performance of a 320 x 244-Element IR-CCD Imager with PtSi Schottky-Barrier Detectors," SPIE's Technical Symposium on Aerospace Sensir.g, Orlando, FL, Mar. 27 - 31, 1989.
- 17. TMA SUPREM-3 One-Dimensional Process Analysis Program, Version 8636, Copyright Technology Modeling Associates, Inc., Oct. 15, 1986.

 S. Selberherr, A. Schütz, H. Pötzl, "MINIMOS - A Two-Dimensional MOS Transistor Analyzer," IEEE Trans. on Electron Devices, <u>ED-27</u>, 1770-1780, (1980).

MISSION

OF

ROME LABORATORY

Rome Laboratory plans and executes an interdisciplinary program in research, development, test, and technology transition in support of Air Force Command, Control, Communications and Intelligence ($C^{3}I$) activities for all Air Force platforms. It also executes selected acquisition programs in several areas of expertise. Technical and engineering support within areas of competence is provided to ESD Program Offices (POs) and other ESD elements to perform effective acquisition of $C^{3}I$ systems. In addition, Rome Laboratory's technology supports other AFSC Product Divisions, the Air Force user community, and other DOD and non-DOD agencies. Rome Laboratory maintains technical competence and research programs in areas including, but not limited to, communications, command and control, battle management, intelligence information processing, computational sciences and software producibility, wide area surveillance/sensors, signal processing, solid state sciences, photonics, electromagnetic technology, superconductivity, and electronic reliability/maintainability and testability.

ᢙ᠙ᡩᡍᡩᡍᡩᡍᡩᢓᠧᡩᢓᠧᡩᢓᠧᡩᢓᠧᡩᢓᠧᡩᢓᠧᢠᢓᠧᡩᢓᠧᢠᢓᠧ